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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELKES

CASE NO.

COMPLAINT FOR:

1. INVASION OF PRIVACY;

2. INTERCEPTION, DISCLOSURE
AND/OR USE OF COMMUNICATIONS IN
VIOLATION OF 18 U.S.C, §2511;

3, VIOLATIONS OF CALIFORNIA PENAL
CODE §§ 632 & 637.2;

4. DISCLUSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL
INFORMATION (Cal. Civ. Codc § 1798,53);
5, INTENTIONAL INFLICTION or
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

6. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
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Plaintiff MICHAEL DAVIS SAPIR, an individual, complains of Defendsnts, and alleges a5
follows:

PARTIES

1. Plaintiff MICHAEL DAYIS SAPIR (aka Michac} Davis) (“Davis” or *Plaintiff””) is an
individual who, at all relevant times, has resided in the State of California, County of Las Angeles.

2, Plaintiff is inforred and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendaut TOM
CRUISE (“Cruise”) is an individual who, at all relevant times, has resided in the State of California,
County of Los Angeles.

3. Plaintiff is informed and bolisves, and on that basis allcgos, Defondent BERTRAM
FIELDS (“Ficlds™) is an individual who, at all relevant times, has resided in the State of Califoruia,
County of Los Angeles.

4, Plaintiff is informed and belicves, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
GREENBERG GLUSKER CLAMAN FIELDS & MACHTINGER LLP (“Grecoberg”) is 8
California limited liahility pattnership with its principal place of business in the County of Los
Angeles.

5, Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendant
ANTHONY PELLICANO (“Pellicanc™) i5 an individual who, at all relevant times, resided in the
State of Califomia, County of Los Augpsles, and is a currently & cesident of » federal correctional
institution in Arizona.

6. Plaintiff is ignorant of the tru¢ names and capacitics of defendants sued herein as Does
1 to 50, inclusive, and therefore sues these defendants under these fictitious names. Plaintiff will
soek Jeave 10 amemnd this Complaimt when it Jearny the maucs aed capacitics of these defendants.

7. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that at all timea mentioned
herein, the defendants, and cach of them, were authorized and empowered by the other defendants,
and each of them, to act, and they did so act, a3 the agent, principal, pariner, joint venturer, employee,
co-conspirator and/or aider and abetter of the other defendants, and each of thean, and all of the things
alleged 0 have been done by themn, and cach of them, were donc in the capacity of and as agents,
principals, parters, joint venturers, employees, co-conspirators and/or aiders and abetters of such
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other defendants.
GENERAL FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

8. This case arises from the surreptitious and illegal wiretapping of Plaintiff’s tslephone
calls by the nowrious private investgator, Anthony Pellicano (“Pellicano™) for vhe benefit of
Defendants Cruise and Fields. Plaintiff's claims against Defendants arise from Defendants’
intentional and malicious scheme and course of conduct of intimidation, harassment, and invasion of
privacy, and/or their conspiracy to commit, or aiding and abetting, such illogal activities,

9. Plaintiff wes the founder, owner and publisher of Bold Magazine, a Beverly Hills,
Californio advertising-busod publication which was similor o LA Woekly,

10.  Pellicano was a private investigator who was found guilty on May 15, 2008 by a
federal jury of 76 of 77 counts, including racketeering, wiretapping (9 counts), conspiracy to wiretap,
manufacture and possession of & wiretapping device, wite fraud (19 counts), unauthorized access of
national law enforcement database (18 coums), idemity theft (13 counts), and computer frand (13 -
coumnta). On December 15, 2008, Pellicano was sentenced 10 15 years in prison and ordered, along
with his codefendants, to pay fincs totaling $2,000,000. ‘

11.  Piclds is a prominent entertainment lawyer with the Greenberg firm. Plaintiff is
informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Fickis has been Cruise’s lawyer since at least
the Iatc 19907s, Pellicano rogularly worked on matters for the clients of Fields and Greenberg and
was paid substantial sums of money in connection therewith, Plaintiff is ioformed and belicves, and
on that basis alleges, that Fields and Groenberg were fully aware at all rejevant times that Peflicano
provided wire-tapping services to obtain information from their adversaries and litigation opponents,
and hired him for that express purposc with full knowledge uf Pellicano’s illegal methods, Indeed,
Fields was quoted as saying that Pellicano used “unorthodox methods.”

12.  Cruise ie a movic stax with a Jong-standing business relationship with Fields,
Greenberg and Pellicano. Plaintiff is informed and befieves, and on that basis alleges, that Cruise has
a patterns and practice of hiring Pellicano, cither directly or indirectly, for the express purpose of
conducting wiretaps. Plaintiff I informed and belicvos, and on that basis alleges. that in or about the
mid 1990's, Cruisc visited Pellicano's office for the purpose of listening to wiretaps. Plaintiff is
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informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that in or about 2001, during the time Cruisc was
about to divorce Nicole Kidman, Pellicano recorded conversations of Kidman and Cruiss. Pelliceno
discussed with at least one of his employees the substancs of those recorded conversations.

13, Lo or about early 2001, Bold Magazinc publisbed & $300,000 reward offer for
videotape evidence that Cyuise way gay. Shortly after the puhlication of the reward offer, Bold
Magazine received an email with a video attachnent in tesponse 10 its reward offer. In or about
Match 2001, upon receipt of the email response, Plaintiff issucd a press relcase indicating that Bold
Magazine had received a response to its reward offer.

14.  Sometime prior to June 4, 2001, Cruisc retained Ficlds and Groonberg to prepare a
defamation lawsuit against Plaintiff.

1$.  On June 4, 2001, Cruise filed & lawsuit against Paintiff for defamation, captioned Tom
Cruise v. Michasl Davis, and beating Case No. BC 251644 (the “Lawsuit”). The Lawsuit sought
$100,000,000 in damages from Plaintiff,

16.  The Vsweuit sctfled in early November 2001, Pursuant o the settlcmert, Plaintiff was
required to enter into a Stipulated Judgment wherein he stipulated at Paragtaph 1. b, that “PlaintifY,
Tom Cruise, does not appear on the videotape to which said defendant referred to in his statements
alleged in the Complaint. Plaintiff is not, and has never been, bomosexual and has never bad a
homascual affir.” A true and correst copy of the Stipulated Judgment is attachcd hereto as Exhibit
“p

17.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Pcllicano wizetapped
Plaintiff in conpectiop with, and dusing the course of, the Lawsuit, as cvidenced by, among other
things:

(1)  Pellicano’s standard business practicc was to wiretap the target of an
investigation. Plaintiff was the target of 8 Peilicano investigation. ‘The FBI found a file entitled
“Michae) Davis Mater” in Pellicanio’s office.

(2)  Pellicano’s standard business practive was to assign a password ending with
the werd “amerta” to access illegally recorded conversations that had been enctypted and stored on
{Magc comguters in his office. The FBI found 8 computer file entitied “Bold” with & przsword “Bold
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cocksucker onerta” in Pellicano’s office. That file was a refevence to Plaintif’s publication Bold.
(3)  Pellicano stated to a witness, in furtherance of the conspiracy, words to the
effect that “If you had to Listen to him [Plaintiff] as much as 1 have you'll realize he's an asshole.”

18.  Plaintiff is informed and belioves, and on that basis allcges, that DOEN 1 through 10,

wers law snforcement employees who conepired with or aided snd abetted Pellicans in procurvag
information on Plaintiff.

19.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that DOES 11 through 20,
were telephone company employees who conspited with or aided and abetted Pellicano in installing
the wiretaps rargeting Platntiff.

20.  Plaintiff is informed and belicves, and o that besis allcges, that Pellicano wirtapped
onversations between Plaintiff and the lawyer reprosenting Plaintiff in the Lawsuit, and thereby
obtained PlaintifPs confidential strategy and concerus in connection with the Lawsuit, including his
fear that Cruiss had vastly groater resouraes with which to pursue the matter, and that despite the
strength of PlaiatitF's cass, the risk of finaucial ruination wns to groat. Defeadants thus Hiegaity
conspired to obtain this confidential information illegally in order to extort termns of settlomsnt
amounting to ¢apitulation by Plaintiff.

21.  Plaintiff first suspected that he was a wiretapping victim within the last year when en
FBI agent advised him to hire a lawyer.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Invasion of Privacy (Intrusion) (Cal Const, Art. 1§ 1)
Agaiust all Defendants)

22, l’laimlﬂ;‘ realleges and incorporates each aud every allegation of paragraphs 1-21
above as though fully set forth herein.

23 As aresult of the conduct of Defendants, Plaintiff's privacy rights guaranteed by
common law and the California constitution were intruded upon and violated when Defcndants
intentionally directed the illegal and unauthorized wiretapping of PlaintifY's telephone lines.

24.  Alternatively, Defendants’ conduot aided and Ahstied Peilicana’s intrusion of
plaintiff's constitutional right to privacy. Plaimiff is informed and believes, and on that basis
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alleges, that Defendants knew of Pellicano’s wiretapping, gave substantial assistance or
encouragement to Pellicano, and their conduct was a substantial in causing harm to Plaintiff.

25.  Altcratively, Defendants are responsible for the acts|of Pellicano under the doctrine
of Respondeat Superior,

26.  The Defendants engaged in a conspiracy to wiretap Piaimiﬂ' with knowledge that their
conduct was illegal and violated Plaintiff"s rights,

27.  Plaintiff did not consent to such wiretapping or the invasion of his privacy.

28.  Asadirect and proximate result of Defendants® acts dlleged above, Plaintiff suffered
damages, incuding siootivngd dlstress damages, in an amount fo bo broved at trial, but in cxocas of
Five Million Dollars.

29.  Defendants’ intrusion was highly offensive to a rcasopable person because, among
other things, the intrusion resulted in the revelation of confidential and private communications,
including without limitation, attorey-client communications and other private conversations.

30, In addition, Defendants’ conduct ax deacribed herein was dons with a conscious
disregard of Plaintiff’s rights, and was done with the intent to vex, J oY, and harass him.
Defendants’ actions in conscious disregard for Plaintiff*s well being| constitute malice, oppression,
and/or fraud, putsuant to California Civil Code Section 3294. Plai ‘iﬂ' is therefore entitled to
punitive damages ko an amount sufficient to punish or sct an examplo of Defendants.

OND C
(Fov Xaterception, Disclosure and/or Use of manications
in Violation of 18 U.8.C. § 2511 Againat All Defendants)

31.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates cach and every allogarion of paragraphs 1-21 ml
23.30 above a8 themgh fully set fiorth herein.

32. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants intcntionally 1o be interceptcd,
endeavored to cause to be intercepted, or procurcd anothet person 1 intercept or endeavor to

intercept Plaintiff’s wire or cloctronic communications in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2511(1 Xa); and/or

33.  Defandants intentionally used, endeavored tn use, or d another person to use of
endeavor to use an electronic, mechanical, or other device to inf an oral communication when
6
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(1) such device was affixed to, or otherwise transmitted a signal through, a wire, cable, or other like
connection used in wire communications; ot (2) such usc or endeavay to use (a) taok place on the
premises of a business o commercial establishment the operations of which affect intcrstate or
forcign commerce; or (b) obtained or was for the purposa of obtaining information felating o the
operations of a business or other coramercial cstablishment the operations of which affect interstate
or foreign commerce in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2511€1)(b), 251 1(AXb)G), and 251 1(1)(0)v); smd/er

14.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that besis alleges, that Dcfendamts
intentionally disclosed, or endeavored to disclose, to another person the contents of Plaintiff*s wire or
electronic conunuaications, knowing or having reason to know that tho information wag obtained
through the intexception of wire or electronic comsunications in violation of 18 U.8.C. § 2511(1)(c)
and/or

35.  Plaintffis informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendants
intentiopally used, or endeavored to use, the contents of Plaintiff’s wire ot electronic
communieationg, while kaowing or having reason to know that the information wes obtained through
the interception of wire or electronic communications in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2511(1)(d); and/or

36.  Defendants did not notify Plabntiff of the above-described jntentional pursuit,
interception, divalgence and/or use of his wire or electronic communications, ror did Plaintiff
consent to such.

37.  Ahernstively, Defendants’ conduct aided and abetted Pellicano’s violation of 18
U.8.C. §2511, Defendants knew of Pellicano’s wiretapping, gave substantial assistance or
encouragement to Pellicano, and was a substantial factor in causing batm to Plaintiff.

38.  Alternatively, Defendanms are responsible for the acls of Pellicant under tho dootrine
of Respondeat Superior. |

39,  The Defendants engaged in a conspirecy to wirctap Plaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illegal and violated Plaintiff's rights.

40,  Plaintiff hes been and is aggricved by the atoresaid pursult, imterccption, divuigence
and/or use of hiz wite or elecironic comtaunications,

41.  Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2520, which provides 2 civil action for any person whose wire
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or electronic cormunications have been intentionally pursued, intercepted, divulged and/or used in
violation of 18 U.8.C. § 2511, Plaintiff seeks equitable and declaratory relief; statutory damages of
whichever is the greater of $100 per day for each day of violation or $10,000; and reasonable
attorneys’ foes and other litigation costs reasonably incurred,

43.  Defendants acted wantonly, recklessly and/or maliciously, Pursuantta 18 11.8.C. §
2520, Plaintiff is therefore entitled to punitive damages in an amount sufficicnt to punish or set an
exarnple of the Defendants.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Vislations of California Penal Code Scctions 632 & 637.2
(Kavesdropping) Against af) Defendants)

43,  Plaintiff reallcges and incorporates each and cvery allegation of paragraphs 1-21, 23-
30, and 32-42 above a5 though fully set forth herein,

44,  Plaintiff is informed and belicves, and on thax basis alleges, that Defchdants
intertionally wiretapped or caused tn have wiretapped and made or caused to have made an
unauthorized and connectiou with Plaintiff's tclephone lincs, wire, cable and thereby listened,
recorded, eavesdropped and intruded without consent on Plaintiff’s private internal telephove
conversations, including without limitation, attorney~client communications and other private
conversations, in violation of Galifornia Penal Code Sections 632 and 637.2.

4s.  Alternatively, Defendamts’ conduct aided and abetted Pellicano’s violations of Penal
Code §632 and 6372. Defendants knew of Pellicano®s illegal wixetapping, geve substantial
assistance of encouragement to Pellicano, and was a substantial factor in causing harm to Plaintiff.

46. Alernatively, Defendants are responsible for the acus of Pellivano under the doctrine
of Respondeat Superior.

47,  The Defendants engaged in a conspiracy to wirctap Plaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illogal and violated Plaintiff®s rights.

48.  As a direct result of Defcndants’ condyct, Plaintitt has sustained and will continue to

sustain general and special damages in an amount to be proved at trial, but not less than Five Million
Dobars.
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49.  Pursuant to California Penal Code Scetion 637.2, Plaintiff is entitled to damages in the
amount of 85,000 or three times the amount of actual damages to be proved st trial, whichever is
gxeater, for each instance when his convorsations were eavesdropped upon, recorded, or published.
Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis slleges, that the Detendants jntercepted and
illegally wirstappod at least 1,000 convergations,

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(For Disclosure of Confidential Information (Cal Civ. Code § 1798.53)
Against all Defendants)

50, Pluintiil reulleges mud incorporates cach and every allegation of paragrophs 1-21, 23
30, 32-42, and 44-49 above as though fully set forth herein.

51, ‘ In intentionally causing the disclosure of Plaintiff's confidential information,
Defendants caused disclosure of information that wes not otherwise public. In imtentionally receiving
Plaintiff’s confidential information, Defendants received information that was not otharwise public.

52, Defendants knew or should have ransanably known that Plaintff’s confidential
information, ineluding LAPD computer database and files, was personal information maintained by a
state agency ot from “records” within a “systero of records” (as these terms are defined in the Federal
Privacy Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-579; 5 U.8.C. § 552a)) maintained by & federal government agency.

53.  Alternatively, Defendants’ conduot aided and abetted Pellicano’s violation of
California Civil Code §1798.53. Defendants knew of Pellicano’s wrongful conduct, gave gubstantial
assistance or encouragement to Pellicano, and wes a substantial factor in causing harm to Plaintiff.

54.  Alternatively, Defendants are responsible for the acts of Pellizano under the doctrine
of Respondeat Superior, ' .

55.  The Defendants engaged in a conspiracy to wiretap Plaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illegal and violated Plalosiff’s rights.

56.  Agaresult of the disclosure and receipt of confidential information, Plaintiff was

damaged in amount to be proven at trial, but not less than Five Million Dollass.
§7.  Defendants acted in conscious dismgard of the rights of Plaintiff. Defendsamis were

aware of the probable dangerous consequences of his conduct toward Plaintiff end willfully and
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deliberately failed to avoid those consequences. Defendants’ conduct toward Plairtiff was intended
to cause injury to Plaintiff and subjected Plaintiff to unjust hardship. Defendants’ conduct was
cartied out with a willful and conscious disregerd of the rights of others. Ay aresult, punitive
damages should be asscssed against Defendants.

sg.  Pussuant to California Civil Coda Section 1798.53, in addition 1o special and gencral
damages, Plaintiff shall be awarded a minimm of $2,500 in exemplary (punitive) damages as well as
attorneys’ fees and other litigation costs reasonably incurred iv this suit.

AUSE TIO
(For Inteutional Infliction of Emotional Distress Agninst all Defcndants)

59.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporaics each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-21, 23+
30, 32-42, 44-49, and 51-58 sbove as though fully set forth herein.

60.  The course of conduct engaged in by Defendants, including the direct intimidation and
harassment and purposctul invasion of privacy and illegal witetapping, constitutes extreme and
outrageous conduct and iz nnacceptable in & decent and law-abiding society.

6l. The conduct of Defendants was intentionally designed to causc jmmediate harm and
injury to Plaintiff and instill fear and apprehension in Plaindff.

62.  Defendants knew or should have known that the conduct alleged herein would result
in Plaintiffs severc cmotional distross, and said conduct was perpetrated by Defendants with the
intent to inflict, or with the reckless disregard for the probability of inflicting memtal anguith and
severe emotional distress on Plaintiff.

63.  Altematively, Defendants® conduct aided and abetted Pellicano’s intentional infliction
of cmotional diswess. Defendants knew of Pellicano’s wrongful cunduct, gave substantial assistavec.
or cocoutagement to Pellicann, and was a substantial factor in causing herm to Plaintiff.

64.  Alternatively, Defendants are responsible for the acts of Pellicano under the doctrine
of Respondeat Superior.

65. The Dofendants engaged in a conspiracy to wiretap Flaintiff with knowledge that their
conduct was illegal and violated Plaintitfs rights.

66.  As a direct result of Defondants’ conduct, Plaintiff became sexiously emotionally
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1 | traumatized, anxious, mentally anguished, and suffered severe emotional distress, in an amoumt to be
2 || proved at trial, but not less than Five Million Dollars.
3 67. Defendants’ actions in conscious disregard for Plaintiff’s well-being constitute matice,
4 l oppression, and/or fraud, pursuant to Celitornia Civil Code Section 3294, Plaintiff ie therefore
5 [ entitled to punitive damages in an amouxnt sufficient to punish or sat an example of Defendants.
6 SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
7 (For Injunctive Relief Agalust all Defendants)
] 68.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates each and every allegation of paragraphs 1-21, 23-
ol 30,3242, 4449, 51-58, and 60-67 above as though fully set forth herein.
10 69, The Snpula\ed Judgment in the Lawsuit provides at Paragraph 2. a. “That defondmt,
11| Michael Davis, and his agents, employses and representatives, including but not limited to, Bold
42| Magszine, are permanently enjoined from issuing, or authorizing the issuance of, any statement
43| contrary to any of the foregoiog findings."
14 70,  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that hasis alleges, that the Stipulated
18| Judgment in the Lawsuit was unlawfully procured through the use of illegal wiretapping.
16 71.  Furthermore, Paragraph 2. a. of the Stipulated Judgment constitutes an unlawful prior
17 || rcetraint.
18 72, Plaintiff sccks injumetive rolict'in the form of an order modifying the Stipulated
19 | Judgment,
2 PRAYER
21 l Wherefoxe, Plaintiff prays for an order or judgment against Defendants as follows:
22 l 1. On the First and Third through Fifth Causcs of Action, goucral and special dumeges
23 | according o proof, but not less than Five Million Doltars;
2. On the Scoond Cause of Action, the greater of $100 per day for each day of violation

or $10,000, according to proof;
3. Troble damages, according to applicable statutes;
4, Punitive dameges s to the Fiost, Second, Rourth, and Fifth Causes of Action:
5. Statutory damages, according to epplicable statutes;
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6. Baquitable mad declaratory relief as to the Second Cause of Action;

7. Injunctive refief as the Sixth Cause of Action;

8. Award of Plaintiff's attomeys' fecs and other costs of suit to the extent permitted by
law, including without limitation pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2520(b)(3), 18 U.S.C. § 2707¢b)(3), Cal.
Civil Code Section 1798.53, and Cal. Code Civ, Proc. § 1021.5; and

9. As to all causes of action, such other and further relicf as the Court may deem just snd
propet.

DATED: December 18, 2009 LAW QFFICES OF DAVID W. AFFELD, AP.C.
And IVES, KIRWAN & DIBBLE, A.P.C.
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DEMAND FOR JURY, TRIAL

Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure §592, Plaintiff bereby demands a trial by jury for all

‘ jssucs so triable.

DATED: December 18, 2009

LAW OFFICES OF DAVID W, AFFELD, A.P.C.
And IVES, KIRWAN & DIBBLE, A.P.C.

13

COMPLAINT

— e e co80



